
City of Clemson 
PLANNING & CODES ADMINISTRATION 

 

1250 Tiger Blvd., Suite 4 • Clemson, SC 29631-2662• (864) 653-2050 • Fax (864) 653-2057 • www.cityofclemson.org 

 

 

 Board of Zoning Appeals 

November 21, 2013 – 6:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

Members Present:  David Senn, Jon Silkworth, Del Kimbler and Mindy Spearman  

 

Members Absent:  Marvin Dixon, Cynthia Robinson, and Brian Roberts 

 

City Staff Present:  Sharon Richardson, Planning and Codes Director and Beth Connor, Recording Secretary 

 

1. Call to Order:  
 

Chairman Mindy Spearman called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.  Mindy reviewed the agenda.  

 

2. Approval of Minutes:  
 

David Senn moved that the Minutes of the September 19, 2013 meeting be approved with corrections.  

Jonathan Silkworth seconded the motion.  Minutes approved. 

 

3. Action Items: 

 

a. Variance Request, 2013-V-05:   The purpose of the proposed variance request is to provide relief 

from the front setback for two proposed buildings as part of an overall expansion of the Clemson 

Downs Complex. 

 

Applicant:  Chip Fogelman, Civil Engineer, Greenville, gave a brief background of Clemson Downs.  

Mr. Fogelman said that the setback for the front were originally measured from the property line.  

When the City of Clemson took over the roads, there was a right-of-way created.  With this creation 

the setback was measured from the right-of-way not the center of the road.  Mr. Fogelman explained 

that the position of the building needs to be as indicated so that the corridor between the buildings will 

tie in. 

 

Mr. Fogelman pointed out that if the building was to be moved that this would require that the rooms 

be decreased in size and as the design indicates the rooms are small as it is.  The Applicant does not 

want to decrease the size of the rooms. 

 

Del Kimbler asked if there would be a variance needed if the setbacks were established from the center 

of the street.  Mr. Fogelman said that there would be no need. 

 

Mr. Kimbler stated that he was not convinced the criteria was met, as this was caused by the City of 

Clemson taking over the roads and creating a right-of-way. 

 

Dr. Leheup, Belton, explained that there is limited space between the current building and the new one 

that is proposed.  The original building was built with semi-private rooms and the new building will be 

built with private rooms to meet the needs and desires of current and new patients to the Skilled Care 

Building.  Dr. Leheup pointed out that the Skilled Care Building has not been expanded in 30 years. 

 

It was suggested that the new building could be moved back and Dr. Leheup stated that this would 

cause privacy issues with existing rooms. 

 

Mr. Kimbler commented that they could pull the shades.  Dr. Leheup expressed the need for sunlight 

because of depression. 



 

 

 

Mr. Kimbler asked for an explanation as to the need to align the corridor.  Mr. Fogelman, using the 

floor plan, explained the need. 

 

Mr. Kimbler stated that the variance attaches to the property and lays with the property forever. 

 

Jonathan Silkworth asked how far the structure would encroach into the setbacks.  Mr. Fogelman 

stated that the porch would encroach 8 feet, the corner would be 5 feed and the maintenance building 

would be approximately 20 feet. 

 

Mr. Kimbler asked if there is any concern about building number 2.  Mr. Fogelman said no. 

 

Mr. Silkworth asked for verification that the maintenance shed would be moved.  Mr. Fogelman said 

that it would be moved. 

 

Mr. Silkworth questioned as to the existing trees.  Mr. Fogelman stated that the intent is to keep all the 

trees that can be saved.  There are no plans to take any trees. 

 

Mr. Fogelman stated that the grade from the crown to the slab is 10-11 feet. 

 

Staff:  Sharon Richardson reported to the Board that when she first spoke with the developer in the 

summer that this use was not allowed, but with the rewrite it is now allowed.  Ms. Richardson 

explained that the RM-3 district was amended making this a legal use. 

 

Ms. Richardson said that letters were sent to property owners within 200 feet of the property which 

meant that there were approximately 200 letters sent out. 

 

Ms. Richardson stated that the right-of-way is further in than realized and that the placement of the 

building is impacted by the surveyed location of the right-of-way.  The building needs to be located as 

shown to maintain the functionality of the building. 

 

Ms. Richardson said that the survey was done after the rewrite.   

 

Mr. Kimbler asked for explanation of the difference in the buffer between the Nursing Care and the 

Assisted Living Building.  Ms. Richardson stated that the Assisted Living buffer is less. 

 

Mr. Kimbler asked if this is a non-conforming use.  Ms. Richardson said that initially it was.  The 

existing campus was built before the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Mr. Kimbler asked if that would be used as a reason for the variance.  Ms. Richardson said that it could 

be. 

 

Public Session Open:  Ms. Spearman opened the Public Session and asked if there was anyone that 

would like to make a comment regarding the issue being discussed. 

 

Sandy Smith, 1002 Keystone Lane, President of Board of Directors for the Clemson Area Retirement 

Center, spoke to the board regarding the need for the new building.  Ms. Smith said that the proposed 

rooms are small enough and expressed the need for sunlight and an airy atmosphere to ward off 

depression. 

 

Mr. Kimbler asked if the new building faced the activity room.  Mr. Fogelman said it did. 

 

Mr. Fogelman said that the elevation of the Skilled Nursing Center is 11 feet and you would have to be 

standing on the roof to see it. 

 

Public Session Closed 



 

 

 

Mindy Spearman explained to the Board how there have been a couple similar situations that the Board 

has granted variances. 

 

Del Kimbler moved to approve the request with the following changes: 

 

a. Boundary was changed after development in applying zoning ordinance. 

b. This change in its details constitutes the conditions’ uniqueness. 

c. New buildings as proposed would be acceptable under the original condition, would be impossible 

under present conditions. 

 

Distances used are as shown on plans provided. 

 

David Senn seconded the motion.  Variance granted unanimously. 

 

4. Reports:  Sharon Richardson informed the Board that Todd Steadman had been hired as the Zoning and 

Codes Administrator and would be joining the staff next month.  Ms. Richardson also reminded the Board 

that they need to RSVP to the Holiday Banquet invitation. 

 

5. Other Items:  None 

 

       6. Adjourn:  6:48 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted by: 

 

 

 

Beth Connor, Recording Secretary 

 

Note:  This meeting has been recorded on audio tape 

 

 
 


